TO:

Public Document Pack

NOTICE
OF
MEETING

The Royal Borough

/4 ~
i ATE ¥ )

Windsor &
Maidenhead

MAIDENHEAD DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

will meet on

WEDNESDAY, 17TH FEBRUARY, 2016

at

7.00 pm

in the

COUNCIL CHAMBER - TOWN HALL,

MEMBERS OF THE MAIDENHEAD DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

COUNCILLOR RICHARD KELLAWAY (CHAIRMAN)
COUNCILLOR DEREK WILSON (VICE-CHAIRMAN)
COUNILLORS CLIVE BULLOCK, GERRY CLARK, DAVID COPPINGER, SIMON
DUDLEY, MAUREEN HUNT, PHILIP LOVE, DEREK SHARP, CLAIRE

STRETTON AND LEO WALTERS

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS

Karen Shepherd
Democratic Services Manager
Issued: Tuesday, 9 February 2016

COUNCILLORS STUART CARROLL, PAUL BRIMACOMBE, DAVID BURBAGE,
CARWYN COX, MOHAMMED ILYAS, ASGHAR MAJEED, MARION MILLS,
MJ SAUNDERS, HARI SHARMA AND ADAM SMITH

Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part | of this meeting.

The agenda is available on the Council’s web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk — if you are viewing this on

the website and there are appendices you are unable to access, please contact the

Panel Administrator Shilpa Manek 01628 796310, or democratic.services@rbwm.gov.uk

Fire Alarm - In the event of the fire alarm sounding or other emergency, please leave the building quickly and calmly by
the nearest exit. Do not stop to collect personal belongings and do not use the lifts. Congregate in the Town Hall Car
Park, Park Street, Maidenhead (immediately adjacent to the Town Hall) and do not re-enter the building until told to do so

by a member of staff.

Recording of Meetings — The Council allows the filming, recording and photography of public Council meetings. This
may be undertaken by the Council itself, or any person attending the meeting. By entering the meeting room you are
acknowledging that you may be audio or video recorded and that this recording will be available for public viewing on the



http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@rbwm.gov.uk

RBWM website. If you have any questions regarding the council’s policy, please speak to the Democratic Services or
Legal representative at the meeting.

AGENDA

PART 1
ITEM | SUBJECT WARD PAGE
NO

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To receive any apologies for absence.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 3-4
To receive any declarations of interest.

3. MINUTES 5-6
To confirm the part | minutes of the meeting of 20/01/2016.

4. PLANNING APPLICATIONS (DECISION) 7-42
To consider the Head of Planning and Development’s report on
planning applications received.

Full details on all planning applications (including application
forms, site plans, objections received, correspondence etc.) can
be found by accessing the Planning Applications Public Access
Module by selecting the following link.
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/dc_public_apps.htm

5. ESSENTIAL MONITORING REPORTS (MONITORING) 43 - 46
To consider the Appeals Decision Report and Planning Appeals
Received.




Agenda Item 2

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

In accordance with the requirements of the Local Government (Access to Information)
Act

1985, each item on this report includes a list of Background Papers that have been
relied

on to a material extent in the formulation of the report and recommendation.

The list of Background Papers will normally include relevant previous planning decisions,
replies to formal consultations and relevant letter of representation received from local
societies, and members of the public. For ease of reference, the total number of letters
received from members of the public will normally be listed as a single Background
Paper,

although a distinction will be made where contrary views are expressed. Any replies to
consultations that are not received by the time the report goes to print will be recorded
as

“Comments Awaited”.

The list will not include published documents such as the Town and Country Planning
Acts

and associated legislation, Department of the Environment Circulars, the Berkshire
Structure Plan, Statutory Local Plans or other forms of Supplementary Planning
Guidance,

as the instructions, advice and policies contained within these documents are common
to

the determination of all planning applications. Any reference to any of these documents
will be made as necessary under the heading “Remarks”.

STATEMENT OF THE HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 1998

The Human Rights Act 1998 was brought into force in this country on 2nd October 2000,
and it will now, subject to certain exceptions, be directly unlawful for a public authority to
act in a way which is incompatible with a Convention right. In particular, Article 8
(respect

for private and family life) and Article 1 of Protocol 1 (peaceful enjoyment of property)
apply to planning decisions. When a planning decision is to be made however, there is
further provision that a public authority must take into account the public interest. In the
vast majority of cases existing planning law has for many years demanded a balancing
exercise between private rights and public interest, and therefore much of this authority’s
decision making will continue to take into account this balance.

The Human Rights Act will not be referred to in the Officer’s report for individual
applications beyond this general statement, unless there are exceptional circumstances
which demand more careful and sensitive consideration of Human Rights issues.



MEMBERS’ GUIDANCE NOTE

DECLARING INTERESTS IN MEETINGS

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS (DPIs)

DPIs include:

e Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain.
e Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit made in respect of any
expenses occurred in carrying out member duties or election expenses.
e Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed
which has not been fully discharged.
e Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the relevant authority.
e Any license to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer.
e Any tenancy where the landlord is the relevant authority, and the tenant is a body in
which the relevant person has a beneficial interest.
e Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where
a) that body has a piece of business or land in the area of the relevant authority,
and
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal
value of the shares of any one class belonging to the relevant person exceeds one
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.

PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS

This is an interest which a reasonable fair minded and informed member of the public would
reasonably believe is so significant that it harms or impairs your ability to judge the public
interest. That is, your decision making is influenced by your interest that you are not able to
impartially consider only relevant issues.

DECLARING INTERESTS

If you have not disclosed your interest in the register, you must make the declaration of
interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as you are aware that you have a DPI or
Prejudicial Interest. If you have already disclosed the interest in your Register of Interests
you are still required to disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter being discussed.
A member with a DPI or Prejudicial Interest may make representations at the start of the
item but must not take part in discussion or vote at a meeting. The term ‘discussion’
has been taken to mean a discussion by the members of the committee or other body
determining the issue. You should notify Democratic Services before the meeting of your
intention to speak. In order to avoid any accusations of taking part in the discussion or vote,
you must move to the public area, having made your representations.

If you have any queries then you should obtain advice from the Legal or Democratic Services
Officer before participating in the meeting.

If the interest declared has not been entered on to your Register of Interests, you must notify
the Monitoring Officer in writing within the next 28 days following the meeting.



43/15

44/15

45/15

46/15

Agenda Iltem 3

MAIDENHEAD DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL
20.01.16

To listen to audio recordings of this meeting, go to:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/meetings_audio_recordings_january2016.htm

PRESENT: Councillors Richard Kellaway (Chairman), Derek Wilson (Vice-Chairman),
Clive Bullock,  David Coppinger, = Simon Dudley, = Maureen Hunt,  Philip Love,
Claire Stretton and Leo Walters.

Officers: Jenifer Jackson (Borough Planning Manager), Shilpa Manek and Sean
O'Connor (Senior Lawyer - Property - Shared Legal Solutions)

Also Present:

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence received from Councillors Gerry Clark and Derek Sharp.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Councillor Coppinger declared a personal interest as the applicant was a personal friend
and would therefore not take part in discussions and decision making for item 3.

Councillor Dudley declared that he was a Bray Parish Councillor and had previously
considered the applications for items 1 and 3 but was attending with an open mind.

Councillor Walters declared that he knew the applicant for item 3 but was attending with an
open mind.

Councillor Wilson declared that he was a Bray Parish Councillor and had previously
considered the applications for items 1 and 3 but was attending with an open mind.

MINUTES
RESOLVED: That the Part | minutes of the meeting of the Maidenhead Development
Control Panel held on 21 December 2015 be approved.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS (DECISION)

The Panel considered the Head of Planning and Development’s report on planning
applications and received updates in relation to a number of applications, following the
publication of the agenda.

NB: *Updates were received in relation to planning applications marked with an asterisk.

15/03644/FULL* Construction of new garage with first floor games room.
Lorien

Brayfield Road The PANEL VOTED UNANIMOUSLY that the
Bray application be REFUSED. The Application was

Maidenhead refused on the grounds outlined in the Planning

SL6 2BN Officer’s report.

(Speakers: The Panel was addressed Mr Patrick Arthurs,
the applicant).

[
Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead
Document Title: Minutes of the Maidenhead Development Control Panel — Wednesday, 20 January 2016
Author: Shilpa Manek 5
Creation Date: Tuesday, 12 January 2016



15/03699/FULL Raising of roof with addition of 3 no. front dormers and

April Cottage 2 no. rear dormers.

Poundfield Lane

Cookham The PANEL VOTED UNANIMOUSLY that the

Maidenhead application be APPROVED. The Application was

SL6 9RY approved subject to the conditions in the Borough
Planning Manager’s report.
(Speakers: The Panel was addressed by Mr Peter
Munday and Mrs Maureen Kent, objectors, Councillor
MJ Saunders, Cookham Parish Councillor and Mr James
Owen, the applicant).

15/03701/FULL* Single storey rear and front extensions, raising of roof to

Corton include 2 x dormers for additional habitable

Ascot Road accommodation at first floor.

Holyport

Maidenhead The PANEL VOTED UNANIMOUSLY that the

SL6 2HY application be APPROVED. The Application was
approved subject to the conditions in the Borough
Planning Manager’s report.
(Speakers: The Panel was addressed by Mr Andrew
Monks, objector and Mrs Alice O’Sullivan, the
applicant).

47/15 ESSENTIAL MONITORING REPORTS (MONITORING)
The Panel noted the appeal decisions and the Vice Chairman, Councillor Derek Wilson,
highlighted that all three applications had been dismissed and congratulated the borough
manager for her hard work.

The Panel noted the planning appeals received.

The meeting, which began at 7.00 pm, ended at 8.05 pm

]
Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead
Document Title: Minutes of the Maidenhead Development Control Panel — Wednesday, 20 January 2016
Author: Shilpa Manek 6
Creation Date: Tuesday, 12 January 2016



Agenda Item 4
RoYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD

Maidenhead Panel

17th February 2016

INDEX
APP = Approval
CLU = Certificate of Lawful Use
DD = Defer and Delegate
DLA = Defer Legal Agreement
PERM = Permit
PNR = Prior Approval Not Required
REF = Refusal
WA = Would Have Approved
WR = Would Have Refused
Item No. 1 Application No. 15/02564/FULL Recommendation REF Page No.
9
Location: Land Between Lightlands Lane And Strande View Walk And Strande Lane Cookham Maidenhead
Proposal: Construction of a log cabin for occupation by an agricultural worker in connection with the operation and
management of an egg laying poultry farm to be established on the holding for a temporary period of 3 years.
Applicant:  Mr Driver Member Call-in: N/A Expiry Date: 27 October 2015
Item No. 1 Application No. 15/02565/FULL Recommendation REF Page No.
9
Location: Land Between Lightlands Lane And Strande View Walk And Strande Lane Cookham Maidenhead
Proposal: Erection of one purpose built poultry shed elevated on a raised platform for the keeping of up to 1750 egg
laying chickens including a separate integral egg packing room at one end of the building.
Applicant:  Mr Driver Member Call-in:  N/A Expiry Date: 27 October 2015
Item No. 1 Application No. 15/02567/FULL Recommendation REF Page No.
9
Location: Land Between Lightlands Lane And Strande View Walk And Strande Lane Cookham Maidenhead
Proposal: The erection of one purpose built poultry shed elevated on a raised platform for the keeping of up to 1350 egg
laying chickens.
Applicant:  Mr Driver Member Call-in: N/A Expiry Date: 27 October 2015
Item No. 1 Application No. 15/02749/FULL Recommendation REF Page No.
9
Location: Land Between Lightlands Lane And Strande View Walk And Strande Lane Cookham Maidenhead
Proposal: The erection of a general purpose portal framed agricultural storage building for the keeping of hay and straw

AGLIST

and a bulk feed storage hopper.

v



Applicant:  Mr Driver Member Call-in:  N/A Expiry Date: 28 October 2015

Item No. 2 Application No. 15/03707/FULL Recommendation PERM Page No.

Location: Gordons Supermarket 17 - 19 Gordon Road Maidenhead SL6 6BS %

Proposal: Alterations to ground floor retail unit and the conversion of upper floors to provide 2 x residential units with
associated parking.

Applicant:  Mr Akhtar Member Call-in: N/A Expiry Date: 8 February 2015

AGLIST



ROYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD
PLANNING COMMITTEE

MAIDENHEAD DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

17 February 2016 Item: 1

Application 15/02564/FULL

No.:

Location: Land Between Lightlands Lane And Strande View Walk And Strande Lane Cookham
Maidenhead

Proposal: Construction of a log cabin for occupation by an agricultural worker in connection with

the operation and management of an egg laying poultry farm to be established on the
holding for a temporary period of 3 years.

Applicant: Mr Driver

Agent: Mr Mark Dugdale - Kernon Countryside Consultants

Parish/Ward: = Cookham Parish

Application No: 15/02565/FULL

Location: Land Between Lightlands Lane And Strande View Walk And Strande Lane
Cookham Maidenhead

Proposal: Erection of one purpose built poultry shed elevated on a raised platform for

the keeping of up to 1750 egg laying chickens including a separate integral
egg packing room at one end of the building.

Applicant: Mr Driver

Agent: Mr Mark Dugdale - Kernon Countryside Consultants

Parish/Ward: Cookham Parish

Application No: 15/02567/FULL

Location: Land Between Lightlands Lane And Strande View Walk And Strande Lane
Cookham Maidenhead

Proposal: The erection of one purpose built poultry shed elevated on a raised platform
for the keeping of up to 1350 egg laying chickens.

Applicant: Mr Driver

Agent: Mr Mark Dugdale - Kernon Countryside Consultants

Parish/Ward: Cookham Parish

Application No: 15/02749/FULL

Location: Land Between Lightlands Lane And Strande View Walk And Strande Lane
Cookham Maidenhead

Proposal: The erection of a general purpose portal framed agricultural storage
building for the keeping of hay and straw and a bulk feed storage hopper.

Applicant: Mr Driver

Agent: Mr Mark Dugdale - Kernon Countryside Consultants

Parish/Ward: Cookham Parish

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Susan Sharman on 01628 685320 or at
susan.sharman@rbwm.gov.uk

1. SUMMARY

1.1 This report considers 4 planning applications submitted in relation to land between Lightlands
Lane, Strande View Walk and Strande Lane, Cookham. The applications are for two purpose
built poultry sheds for the keeping of up to 3500 egg laying chickens, (with one including a
separate integral egg packing room at one end of the building), construction of a log cabin for
occupation by an agricultural worker in connection with an egg laying poultry farm (on a 3 year
temporary basis), the erection of a general purpose portal framed agricultural storage building for
the keeping of hay and straw and a bulk feed storage hopper.

9




1.2

1.3

1.4

3.1

The application sites are located in the Green Belt and the functional flood plain, Flood Zone 3b.
While planning policies promote the development of agricultural businesses and consider
agricultural buildings to be appropriate in the Green Belt, the proposed log cabin for an
agricultural worker is not appropriate and there are no very special circumstances to justify
allowing it which clearly outweigh the harm to the Green Belt and any other harm. Furthermore,
as none of the proposed development is water compatible or essential infrastructure it is not
permitted in this flood zone. The principle of allowing the development is not acceptable.

The field in which the application sites are located is, for planning purposes, agricultural land. As
such the use of the land for agriculture does not require planning permission. While the
Environmental Protection Officer (EPO) has expressed concerns regarding the potential odour
problems to residents living close to the site, this would principally arise as a result of the use of
the land rather than from the development proposed by the applications. For this reason, the
EPO has not raised any objections to the proposals.

Subject to planning conditions in relation to the access and parking, the Highway Authority raises
no objections. In addition, and having regard to the appropriateness of the agricultural buildings
in the Green Belt and the size of the agricultural unit, it is not considered that these buildings
would harm the character of the area by reason of loss of openness, scale or appearance.
However, insufficient information has been submitted with the applications to demonstrate that
the proposals would not harm important trees on the site, nor harm protected habitats and
species.

It is recommended the Panel refuses planning permission for all the applications for the
following summarised reasons (the full reasons are identified in Section 10 of this
report):

1. | The application sites are in the functional flood plain, Flood Zone 3b and the
proposed development are not of a type that is permitted in this zone. In addition,
no evidence to demonstrate that the proposals would not impede the flow of flood
water, affect the water storage capacity of the land or increase the number of
people and/or properties from flooding. Therefore, also contrary to Policy F1 of the
Local Plan.

2 | Potential adverse impact on important trees. Contrary to Policies DG1 and N6.

3 | Potential adverse impact on protected habitats and species, plus lack of
biodiversity enhancements. Contrary to paragraph 118 of the NPPF.

Additional reason in respect of application 15/02564:

4 | Inappropriate development in the Green Belt. No ‘very special circumstances’ have
been put forward which outweighs the harm to the Green Belt and the other harm,
identified in the report.

REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION

e The Borough Planning Manager and Lead Member for Planning consider it appropriate that
the Panel determines the application.

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS
The application sites are located within an existing open field (of approximately 2.4 hectares),
located to the east of Lightlands Lane. The sites for the poultry sheds would be positioned

towards the northern end of the field, while the sites for the storage building and agricultural
dwelling would be towards the southern end, close to the existing access off Strande Lane.

10



3.2

3.3

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

5.1

5.2

The field, in which the application sites sit, is bounded by Lightlands Lane to the east, along
which there are a number of individual, detached residential properties. Open land lies to the
north and north-west, while Strande View, with some residential properties, lies adjacent to the
south-west boundary of the field. Strande Lane lies adjacent to the south boundary. The field
sits at a noticeably lower level than its surroundings and is largely enclosed by established
hedgerows and trees. A line of oak trees crosses the field from east to west about 30 metres
north of southern boundary and a public right of way runs along its western boundary.

The application sites are located in the Green Belt and in an area where there is a high
probability of flooding.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSALS AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

The applications are for four types of development required in association with the proposed
agricultural use of the land, specifically egg production. Each of the proposed poultry sheds
would be approximately 31.5 metres long, 15 metres wide and approximately 6.5 metres in height
(including the raised platform on which it will sit), and would each house up to 1750 egg laying
hens. Each poultry shed would consist of an aluminium frame consisting of nine 3 metres bays
to provide a continuous open structure to house the birds. A packing room will be separated
internally at the end of one of the structures incorporating one 3 metre bay. Livestock mesh will
form the walls which can be opened to release the birds into the self-contained paddocks, and
polyboard and aluminium doors will be positioned at each gable end of each structure for access.
The domed roof structure will comprise clear polythene sheeting together with 2 roof vents for
added ventilation.

The storage building would be 9.1 metres wide, 18.3 metres long and have a maximum ridge of
height 5.5 metres. It will be a standard steel portal framed structure, open fronted on the
northern elevation and fully clad to the east, west and south elevations under a corrugated sheet
roof. Corrugated roof sheets will be used to clad the building.

An internal access track will be created within the site from the existing field gate past the storage
building to lead on parallel to the western field boundary to the site of the 2 poultry sheds. An
area of hardstanding to the north of the proposed storage building will provide an area for the
farm machinery to turn, together with an area for visitor parking.

The proposed log cabin, for use as a three bedroom agricultural worker’s dwelling would be 6.8
metres wide, approximately 20 metres long and have a maximum height of 5.15 metres. At this
stage, the applicant is applying for the dwelling on a temporary 3 year basis.

There is no planning history relevant to the consideration of these applications.

MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION

National Planning Policy Framework, Sections 28, 55, 89, 100 — 103, 118, 119 and 123.

Royal Borough Local Plan

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

High Highways Pollution &
GBreen risk of AEHEE /Parking Development
elt . Trees .
flooding issues

Local Plan GB1,

GB2 F1 NG T5, P4 NAP3
Cookham G21,
Village G4 .4,
Design G13.1.
Statement G13.3

G134

11



5.2

54

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

Supplementary planning documents adopted by the Council relevant to the proposal are:

e Interpretation of Policy F1 — Area Liable to Flood
e Cookham Village Design Statement (relevant policies identified above)

More information on these documents can be found at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/pp supplementary planning.htm

Other Local Strategies or Publications

Other Strategies or publications relevant to the proposal are:
° RBWM Parking Strategy - view at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp_supplementary planning.htm
° RBWM Strategic Flood Risk Assessment - view at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp supplementary planning.htm

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION

The key issues for consideration are:

Whether the principle of development is acceptable ;

Green Belt issues;

iii Flooding;

iv The impact on the living conditions of nearby residents;
% Parking and highway considerations;

Vi The impact on trees;

vii Ecological issues.

The principle of development

For the purposes of planning, the field in which all four planning applications are located is
classified as being agricultural land. The use of the land for agricultural purposes is therefore
acceptable and does not require planning permission. Consideration of these applications
relates to the proposed agricultural buildings and dwelling as opposed to the use of the sites.

The sites are located in the Green Belt. Paragraph 89 of the NPPF lists the types of new
buildings in the Green Belt that are not inappropriate and agricultural buildings are included in
this. The proposed poultry sheds and storage building are therefore appropriate in the Green
Belt. However, a dwelling for an agricultural worker is not included within the lists of

development not considered to be inappropriate and therefore this is inappropriate development
in the Green Belt.

The field is also located in the functional flood plain, Flood Zone 3b, where water has to flow or
be stored in times of flood. As such, only water-compatible uses and essential infrastructure
listed in Table 2 of the Technical Guidance to the NPPF that has to be there should be permitted
in this zone. As the development proposed by the four applications is neither water-compatible
nor classed as essential infrastructure it should not be permitted in this field.

In summary, while the agricultural buildings proposed are, in principle, appropriate in the Green
Belt, the proposed dwelling is not and none of the proposed development is acceptable within
the functional flood plain. Therefore, the principle of development is not acceptable.

Green Belt issues:

12


http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/pp_supplementary_planning.htm
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp_supplementary_planning.htm
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp_supplementary_planning.htm

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

Policy GB1 of the Local Plan advises that certain types of residential development are
acceptable in the Green Belt in accordance with Policies GB3 — GB5. Point 2 of policy GB3
advises that residential development is acceptable where there is a proven need for a new
dwelling to be provided ancillary to an existing agricultural use on the site and where it can be
demonstrated that the dwelling has to be located on the site, and that no suitable existing
buildings exist which could be converted or extended for this purpose. The applicant’s
supporting statement relies on compliance with this policy. However, policy GB3 does not
comply with the NPPF, which is the more up-to-date policy. Although paragraph 89 of the NPPF
refers to buildings for agriculture being appropriate in the Green Belt, a dwelling for an
agricultural worker is not listed as being appropriate development. The dwelling is therefore
inappropriate development in the Green Belt. Inappropriate development is by definition harmful
and should not be approved except in very special circumstances. Paragraph 88 advises that
local planning authorities should ensure that substantial weight is given to any harm to the Green
Belt and that ‘very special circumstances’ will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green
Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm, is clearly outweighed by other
considerations.

The applicant has advised that a worker needs to live on the site because the number of birds
kept at the proposed scale will generate significant managerial and labour requirements
throughout the year, undertaking jobs including: temperature and time clock checks, regular
processing of eggs produced, maintaining and checking the feed and grit and water supplies,
daily opening and closing of the poultry structures to allow the hens to roam free range,
monitoring birds for signs of disease or weakness, monitoring birds to minimise loss from
predators, inclement weather or sudden changes which may cause hens to panic, egg
collections, feed deliveries, general cleaning and maintenance, vermin control and security.

The applicant is required to demonstrate that the need to live on the site, as outlined above,
would not only clearly outweigh the harm to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, loss
of openness and encroachment in the countryside (for which substantial weight is given), but the
need also outweighs harm caused by flooding, potential impact on the trees and potential impact
on protected species and habitats (covered further in this report). In this case, it is not
considered that this Green Belt harm and other harm is clearly outweighed by the need for the
worker to live on site, and therefore very special circumstances do not exist in this case to justify
allowing the new dwelling.

Part A of policy GB2 of the Local Plan complies with the NPPF, but Part B does not as Green
Belt policy in the NPPF does not cover the character of the countryside. The impact of the
proposed development on the character of the area is however still a material consideration to be
taken into account in the assessment of the proposals, and is covered by policy DG1 in the Local
Plan.

The NPPF advises that agricultural buildings are appropriate in the Green Belt. As such, it is
accepted that these buildings will result in some loss of openness and may be visible from public
vantage points. Having regard to the total size of the proposed agricultural holding (as opposed
the size of the individual sites) and the agricultural designation of the land, it is not considered
that either individually or collectively the agricultural buildings would result in a significant loss of
openness that would be detrimental to the character of the countryside. The maijority of the field
would remain open and the type and scale of the buildings are considered typical for the
agricultural use proposed. However, each of the application sites is in close proximity to trees
that make an important contribution to the rural character and appearance of the area, but the
appropriate surveys and plans required to assess the impact of the development has not be
submitted with the applications. As such it has not been demonstrated that the proposals will not
harm the trees, and therefore not harm the character of the area, and therefore all four
applications are contrary to policy DG1.

The Public Rights of Way Officer has advised that the proposed development, by reason of its
siting close to Footpath 48 and size would have a significant adverse impact on open views from
the footpath and this would significantly reduce the enjoyment of the footpath by walkers.

13



6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15

6.16

6.17

6.18

However, it should be noted that only a comparatively small length of this footpath would be
affected, with the majority of the field remaining open and undeveloped. With the exception of
the dwelling, the buildings are appropriate development in the Green Belt and are typical in
appearance for the type of use proposed. Overall, it is not considered that the proposals would
materially reduce the enjoyment of this part of the footpath to such a degree as to warrant
refusing planning permission.

Flooding

The Environment Agency has confirmed its objection to each of the applications on the basis that
the sites are all located within the functional flood plain, as referred to in paragraph 6.4 above.

The Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) submitted with the applications explains that the proposed
developments would be raised off the ground, in the case of the poultry sheds by 1.25 metres
and by 1.5 metres for the log cabin. It is proposed that voids underneath these buildings would
allow flood water to flow freely over the land. The feed bin would already be raised above the
ground and the proposed storage building would be of a construction that will allow water to
wash through the building unimpeded.

Notwithstanding the in-principle flooding objection, the Local Plan under Policy F1 advises that
the use of piers to overcome flooding objections is not acceptable, because where this form of
design solution has been allowed problems have resulted from the inability of the planning
authority to ensure that the voids beneath the buildings are not obstructed. As such, it is not
accepted that the poultry sheds or log cabin would not impede the flow of flood water, reduce the
capacity of the flood plain to store flood water, nor increase the number of properties at risk from
flooding. In addition, the submitted FRA does not demonstrate that safe access and egress
could be achieved to and from the log cabin in the event of a flood, and therefore that application
does not demonstrate that the proposal would not increase the number of people at risk from
flooding. With regard to the feed hopper and storage building it is a reasonable assumption that
these would each be placed on an area of hard standing (rather than directly on the ground) and
as such, in the absence of evidence to the contrary, these would likely affect the flood water
storage capacity of land.

While paragraph 28 of the NPPF promotes the development of agricultural rural businesses, it is
not considered that this outweighs the harm arising from the development in respect to flooding
(and other potential harm outlined further in the report). For the reasons outlined above, the
proposals are contrary to Table 3 of the Technical Guide to the NPPF, March 2012, paragraph
103 of the NPPF and Policy F1 of the Local Plan.

The impact on the living conditions of nearby residents

As previously advised policy GB2 B does not comply with the NPPF. However Policy NAP3 of
the Borough Local Plan advises that the Council will not grant planning permission for proposals
likely to emit unacceptable levels of noise, smells or fumes beyond the site boundaries.

The Council's Environmental Protection team was consulted on the applications. Initially,
concerns were raised regarding potential problems from odours coming from the outside litter
when the ground is wet and saturated. The Environmental Protection Officer (EPO) advised that
poultry and pig farming produces the strongest manure odours and due to the sites’ close
proximity to residential properties (the closest being 25 metres away) these may be affected by
the odour and ammonia from the manure.

It is important to note, however, that the use of the field for agriculture does not require planning
permission, only the proposed buildings. As such, the applicant can use the field for any type of
agricultural use (chickens, pigs, cows, sheep, etc.) and the local planning authority (LPA) has no
control over it. The LPA also has no control over the numbers of animals that can be kept on the
land.  For these reasons, the LPA should not object to potential problems, such as those
originally raised by the EPO arising from the use of the land, but keep its assessment to the
proposed buildings only.

14



6.19

6.20

6.21

6.22

6.23

6.24

The EPO has not raised any objections to the proposed buildings, nor recommended any
conditions to be attached to any approval. Instead, it has advised that an informative be attached
to any approval that the applicant follows Best Practice Guidelines to minimise odour, dust and
noise levels, to take into consideration other environmental factors and follow DEFRA Code of
Good Agricultural Practice ‘Protecting our water, Soil and Air — A Code of Good Agricultural
Practice for farmers, growers and land managers (2009) in regards to dust (levels of which
should be kept to a minimum), noise (from the operation of the site, including deliveries to and
from the site), ground contamination (particularly from the ground deposits, which over time could
raise elevated odours especially during wet periods), vermin (the applicant should have a Pest
Control Management Plan to minimise any impact from rodents) and, flies (the applicant should
have a Flies Control Management Plan to minimise any impact from flies in the area resulting
from the development). The EPO has stressed that the applicant should ensure that all the
appropriate controls referred to above are put in place to prevent them causing a statutory
nuisance under the Environmental Protection Act 1990. Should operations at the site give rise to
complaints from residents, officer from the Council will investigate under this legislation.

It is noted that the vast majority of the objections received in connection with these applications
include concerns about dust, noise, vermin, ground contamination and flies. The concerns of the
EPO are also noted but it should be made clear that, in the absence of specific objections in
relation to the proposed buildings and on the scale of development proposed, planning
legislation cannot control these aspects. Instead, the Environmental Protection Act 1990 covers
these issues in the event of them becoming a statutory nuisance.

For the reasons outlined above, no objections are raised in terms of the impact of the proposals
of nearby residents.

Parking and highway considerations

The Highway Authority has advised that the existing access off Strande Lane is of a sufficient
width to accommodate two way flows by 2 cars, however it would require the applicant to submit
a detailed plan of the parking provision for the development indicating the customer parking
areas together with the parking and loading areas for lorries. Based upon the information
provided, the proposal, in the opinion of the Highway Authority, is unlikely to generate a
significant number of trips which would present harm to road safety. A worst case scenario would
suggest that the operation could generate 4 to 5 lorry trips (10 movements) a month, but it is
difficult to predict how many trips the egg sale business to the public would attract.

Strande Lane has a fairly narrow carriageway width with no footway and, being a private street,
the road is maintained by the householders it serves. Bearing this in mind the Highway Authority
acknowledges the concerns expressed by local residents about traffic generation. However,
based upon the information submitted the potential trips generated by the proposals suggest an
occasional use of Strande Lane by vehicles no greater in size or number of trips presently
undertaken by vehicles used in the Borough’s Refuse/Recycling Department.

An interrogation of the Highway Authority accident data base revealed that there has been 1
reported accident in the past 10 years. The cause of the accident was due to a driver travelling
too fast and aggressively along Strande Lane. For the avoidance of doubt, to refuse the
application on traffic grounds there must be evidence to show that the development would result
in a significant increase in vehicular activity, which would cause harm to road safety and, that any
spate of accidents in the area, plus the deficiencies in the highway network, cannot be overcome
by the applicant. Based on the submission it would be difficult to sustain a refusal at an appeal.
Therefore, the Highway Authority offers no objection to the proposal, subject to the inclusion of
planning conditions in respect of parking provision and access.

The impact on trees

15



6.25

6.26

6.27

6.28

6.29

7.1

The Tree Officer has advised that the trees within and surrounding the site have a high amenity
value and provide an attractive green backdrop to Lightlands Lane as well as forming an
important screen to the field when viewed from the public footpath. These trees should be
retained and protected as part of the development of the site.

However, the applicant has not submitted a tree survey, constraints plan, tree protection plan or
arboricultural method statement and as such the impact on the trees cannot be fully determined.
In the absence of this information it would appear that many prominent and valuable trees
(including the line of oak trees within the field that are subject to Tree Preservation Order
015/2015) would be adversely affected. The loss of these trees would be detrimental to the
character and appearance of the area, contrary to Local Plan policies DG1 and N6.

Ecological issues

The council’s ecologist has advised that the individual sites and surrounding field have the
potential to support a range of protected species including, but limited to, amphibians such as
great crested newt, reptiles, bats and birds. These and other species are protected under
European and/or UK legislation which means that the proposed development (construction of
vehicle access, parking areas, log cabins and poultry sheds) could potentially have an effect on
these protected species. Without the relevant survey information, the planning authority cannot
determine whether or not protected species (which are a material consideration to the
applications) will be affected by the proposed development.

In the absence of a desk study and extended Phase 1 habitat survey, (together with any further
surveys required following the results of the initial surveys), it has not been demonstrated to the
satisfaction of the LPA that the proposals would not harm any important habitats and/or
protected species. The proposals are therefore contrary to paragraph 118 of the NPPF.

Other Material Considerations

An Environmental Impact Assessment is not required in support of the proposed development as
the proposals do not, either individually or collectively, fall within the definition of development set
out within Schedules 1 or 2 of the Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations, 2011.
ASSOCIATED INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS

The proposed development would not place any additional pressure on local services and
infrastructure and therefore contributions towards these are not sought from the applications

CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT
Comments from interested parties
15 occupiers were notified directly of the applications

The planning officer posted the statutory notices advertising the applications at the site entrance
on 18" September 2015.

No letters of support of the applications were received.

618 letters of objection were received in respect of application 15/02564
629 letters of objection were received in respect of application 15/02565
629 letters of objection were received in respect of application 15/02567
617 letters of objection were received in respect of application 15/02749

Summary of objections:

Where in the
Comment report this is
considered

16



1. This is a known flood risk area — the field has repeatedly flooded. If 6.12— 6.21
allowed, the development would increase flood risk elsewhere and put
people and their homes at risk.
This is Green Belt land and should not be built on. 6.6 -6.11

3. The buildings would be an eyesore spoiling views of the area. This 6.6 - 6.11

harms and changes the character of the countryside. The proposals
would spoil the enjoyment of users (including many visitors to the
area) of the public footpath.

4. The development is too close to residential properties. It will lead to 6.16 — 6.21

high levels of noise (from chickens and ventilation fans), horrendous
smells, vermin, flies, attract foxes and lead to problems with dust and
air pollution. It will pollute the ground and lead to pollution of the
water courses and increase the risk from diseases. All of this will
result in health problems for local residents and seriously harm their
enjoyment of their homes. The nuisance will be all the time, day and
night. Nothing will be able to sufficiently mitigate these impacts

5. Animal welfare — if the field floods (which it will) the chickens will Noted

drown.

6. The proposals are contrary to the Cookham Village Design Statement | 6.6 — 6.11

and Policies GB1 and GB2 of the Local Plan.

7. The proposals will lead to an increase in heavy traffic, lorries and 6.22 -6.24

commercial vehicles and the country lanes and roads in this area are
not suitable for this. The proposals will increase the risk to vehicular
and pedestrian safety. The lanes and public footpaths are well used
by walkers, cyclists, horse riders, children etc. and their safety would
be at risk

8. The proposals would devalue properties in the area. Not a planning
consideration.

9. The proposals will harm local wildlife and important habitats. 6.27 — 6.28

10. | The agricultural venture is new and not financially sound. The Not relevant to

applicant is inexperienced. the
consideration of
the applications.

11. | The applicant does not need a three bedroom dwelling and there isno | 6.6 — 6.8

need for accommodation on site as there are house for sale / rent in
the area.

12. | The field is within 350 metres of a Roman villa site. See
archaeology
comments
below.

13. | Will adversely affect local residents’ lives, livelihoods and businesses. | 6.16 — 6.21

Statutory consultees, comments summarised
Where in the

Consultee Comment report this is
considered

Cookham Objects: _ 6.2 —6.29

Parish Contrary to Policy GB2 of the Local Plan and Cookham VDS;

Council Size of dwelling is not sufficiently justified,;

Flood risk;
Site contamination and risk to public health, animal welfare

and environment;
17




Inadequate highway access and harm to highway and
pedestrian safety;

Harm to residential amenities from noise, light pollution,
vermin, land contamination, smells, airborne contamination
and bacteria. Harm to local residents including children at
nursery school and residents of local nursing homes;

Harm to the enjoyment of the public right of way — harm to
the views from the footpath, plus smells and vermin;

Harm to Thames water installation adjacent to the site;
Impact on trees;

There should be no on-site sale of eggs due to increase in
traffic;

Suspicion over the submission of 4 separate applications;
Concerns over effective management of the site and viability;
Inadequate assessment of substantial risks to the public;

An EIA should be required.

Environment
Agency

Objects

The proposed development falls into a flood risk
vulnerability that is inappropriate to the flood zone in which
the application site is located. We recommend that the
planning application should be refused on this basis.

Detailed flood modelling indicates that the proposed sites are
fully located within the 5% Annual Exceedance Probability
(AEP) (1 in 20 year) flood extent. This is classified in the
Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Strategic Flood
Risk Assessment (SFRA) and the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF) as flood zone 3b (functional floodplain).
The National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) defines
this area as having a ‘high probability’ of flooding and the
space where water has to flow or be stored in times of
flooding.

In accordance with paragraphs 100 to 103 of the NPPF and
‘Table 3: Flood Risk vulnerability and flood zone
compatibility’ ID references 7-067-20140306 of the NPPG,
the proposed developments are not compatible with the flood
zone in which it falls, and therefore should not be permitted.

In accordance with saved policy F1 of the Royal Borough of
Windsor and Maidenhead (RBWM) Local Plan (adopted
2003) and with paragraph 103 of the National Planning
Policy Framework (NPPF), we object to the application and
recommend refusal of planning permission until a
satisfactory Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) has been
submitted. The Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) reference
KCC1943 submitted with this application dated July 2015
and prepared by Kernon Countryside Consultants Ltd, does
not comply with the requirements set out in paragraph 103 of
the NPPF and saved policy F1 of the Royal Borough of
Windsor and Maidenhead (RBWM) Local Plan (adopted
2003). The submitted FRA does not therefore provide a
suitable basis for assessment to be made of the flood risks
arising from the proposed development. Consequently, the
proposed development may place people and the
environment at an increased risk of flooding.

6.12-6.15

Other consultees and organisations. Comments summarised:

Consultee

Comment

Where in the

18




report this is
considered

The Cookham
Society

Objects:

The site regularly floods;

Concern for the chickens in the event of a flood;

Contrary to Policy GB2 of the Local Plan;

Concern over access to the site

Harm to the Green Belt;

No need for a dwelling to be on site;

Contrary to the Cookham VDS — design of farm buildings;
Concerns regarding pollution and risks to public health;
The Council should undertake a full EIA.

6.2-6.29

National Trust

Objects: Impact on Widbrook Common via unsuitable
buildings in the flood plain.

Sufficient justification for the development in the Green
Belt and should not harm the setting of Cliveden, its
gardens and parkland.

6.6 -6.15

Environmental
Protection

Would advise that the applicant (via informative wording
on any decision notice) to follow Best Practice Guidelines
to minimise odour, dust and noise levels during operation
of this site; which (if poorly managed) have the potential to
negatively impact close residential properties. The
applicant is also required to take into consideration other
environmental factors and follow DEFRA Code of Good
Agricultural Practice ‘Protecting our Water, Soil and Air - A
Code of Good Agricultural Practice for farmers, growers
and land managers (2009)’

The applicant is required to ensure the new

sheds (and associated litter) are sited away from any
residential properties and must make sure controls are in
place to the above levels to prevent them from causing a
statutory nuisance under Environmental Protection Act
1990. Should operations give rise to residential
complaints, officers from the Borough will investigate
under this legislation.

6.16 — 6.21

Highways

No objections subject to conditions.

6.22—-6.24

Ecology

Objects:

No information relating to ecology at the proposed sites
has been submitted with the applications. As such the
LPA cannot determine the impact of the proposals on
protected habitats or species. No biodiversity
enhancements have been proposed by the applications.
Contrary to paragraphs 109 and 118 of the NPPF.

6.27

Lead Local
Flooding
Authority

No detailed proposals relating to the disposal of surface
water have been provided as part of the submitted
application and the application therefore fails to
demonstrate that the proposed development will comply
with the non-statutory technical standards for sustainable
drainage (dated March 2015).

Not applicable
as the individual
sites are less
than 1 hectare.

Thames Water | No objections but applicant is advised to contact Thames | Noted.
water Developer Services
Ramblers (East | Objects — would adversely affect the enjoyments of users | g 11
Berkshire) of the public right of way (Cookham FP 48), which is an
important link to the Green Way and much used by local
people. Contrary to Policy R14 of the Local Plan and
inappropriate development in the Green Belt.
Maidenhead Concerned about the risks to ground water and water 6.12 —6.15
Waterways quality in the nearby Strande water and Maidenhead ditch

channels

19




Berkshire
Archaeology

Recommends condition:

The application sites fall within the floodplain of the Middle
Thames Valley, where the gravel terraces and deep
alluvial soils have been a focus of settlement, farming and
burial throughout the prehistoric, Roman and post-Roman
periods. Archaeological investigations in advance of
development in the Thames Valley south of Maidenhead,
for example at Eton College Rowing Lake, Bray Triangle
and Weir Bank Stud Farm, have shown the extraordinary
richness and quality of buried remains, including
waterlogged timber structures, middens and burial
monuments, set within former channels and braids of the
River Thames. The likelihood is that similar such deposits
will also occur to the north of Maidenhead, which has
been subject to less development. The presence of
extensive archaeological remains is suggested by crop
mark enclosures to the east of Danes Manor Farmery,
Iron Age and Roman settlement at White Place Farm, a
series of crop mark enclosures, ring ditches and possible
field systems on Widbrook Common, a Roman settlement
at Strande Park and Neolithic and Bronze Age (4,300 —
1,000 BC) remains at Cookham Cemetery. These last two
sites are less than 500m from these application sites.
While some elements of these proposals do not seem to
be substantial, details of potential impacts below ground
are sketchy and unclear. These include, for example, the
construction of the storage building, the internal access
track, ‘parking’ area and any services supplying the new
developments.

In view of the previously undeveloped character of the
site, its archaeological potential and the potential impacts
on below ground deposits, Berkshire Archaeology
recommends a programme of archaeological work to
mitigate the impacts of the development, should
permission be granted. is in accordance with paragraph
141 of the NPPF.

Noted.

Public Rights of
Way Officer

Objects:

A public footpath (Cookham Footpath 48) runs along the
eastern side of the application site. The legal route of the
footpath runs parallel to the eastern edge of the field,
generally between 5m and 9m metres into the field from
the field boundary, although there is a well trodden

path following a more westerly route extending up to
approximately 25m into the field.

The applicant has advised that the fence alongside the
footpath will be a 2.0m high poultry fence, and the
application form states that the proposed boundary
treatment is ‘agricultural fencing for chickens’.

Footpath 48 is a well-used public footpath which runs from
Maidenhead Road southwards to Strande Lane. The
footpath then follows Strande Lane for a short distance
before turning southeast across fields to connect with the
Green Way, a widely promoted recreational walking route.
Footpath 48 also provides a link, via Strande Lane, to
National Cycle Route 50 which follows Lightlands Lane to
the north and a permitted cycleway to the south.

The proposed poultry sheds would be clearly visible from
Footpath 48, (the more easterly shed would be a few
metres from the footpath), as would the associated

6.11

20




infrastructure including hard standings, access track,
internal fencing and car parking area. Due to the
east-west configuration of the proposed poultry sheds,
walkers approaching from the north along Footpath 48
would have a ‘side-on’ view of the sheds extending almost
across the entire field. Walkers would then pass very
close to the more easterly shed. Similarly, when
approaching from the south, there would be ‘side-on’
views of the sheds and clear views of the associated
infrastructure.

Bearing in mind the height and overall size of the
proposed sheds, their proximity to the footpath, and the
associated infrastructure, it is considered that the
proposed development would have a significant adverse
impact on the open views from the footpath, and that this
would significantly reduce the enjoyment of the footpath
by walkers. Refusal is therefore recommended on the
grounds that the application does not comply

within Policy R14 of the Local Plan.

Trees Trees within and surrounding the site have a high amenity | 6-25
value and provide an attractive green backdrop to
Lightlands Lane as well as forming an important screen to
the field when viewed from the public footpath. These
trees should be retained and protected as part of the
development of the site.

The applicant has not submitted a tree survey, constraints
plan, tree protection plan and arboricultural method
statement and as such the impact on the trees cannot be
fully determined. In the absence of this information it
would appear that many prominent and valuable trees
(including the line of oak trees within the field that are
subject to Tree Preservation Order 015/2015) would be
adversely affected. The loss of these trees would be
detrimental to the character and appearance of the area,
contrary to Local Plan policies DG1 and N6.

9. APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

e Appendix A — 15/02564 Location plan
e Appendix B — 15/02564 Elevations
e Appendix C — 15/02565 Location plan
e Appendix D — 15/02565 Elevations
e Appendix E — 15/02567 Location plan
e Appendix F — 15/02567 Elevations
e Appendix G — 15/02749 Location plan
e Appendix H - 15/02749 Elevations

This recommendation is made following careful consideration of all the issues raised through the
application process and through discussion with the applicants. The Case Officer has sought
solutions to these issues where possible to secure a development that improves the economic,
social and environmental conditions of the area, in accordance with NPFF.

21



10.

In this case the issues have not been successfully resolved.

REASONS RECOMMENDED FOR REFUSAL IF PERMISSION IS NOT GRANTED

Application 15/02564/FULL

1

The proposal represents inappropriate development in the Green Belt contrary to paragraph 89
of the National Planning Policy Framework, March 2012. Inappropriate development is by
definition harmful to the Green Belt and the applicant has failed to demonstrate that any very
special circumstances exist that clearly outweigh the harm caused by the reason of
inappropriateness and the other harm identified in subsequent reasons for refusal.

The application site lies within the functional flood plain (Flood Zone 3b), and the type of
development proposed is not permitted in this flood zone. In addition, the submitted Flood Risk
Assessment does not demonstrate that the proposed development would not impede the flow of
flood water, reduce the capacity of the flood plain to store flood water or increase the number of
people or properties at risk from flooding. The proposal is therefore contrary to saved policy F1
of the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan 1999 (incorporating alterations
adopted June 2003) and to advice contained in National Planning Policy Guidance on flooding
and paragraphs 100 to 103 of the National Planning Policy Framework, March 2012.

The Local Planning Authority is not convinced that the development, as proposed, can be
implemented without having a detrimental impact on the health and visual amenity of the
principal trees within and surrounding the site in both the short and longer term. The principal
trees contribute positively to the appearance of the area, provide screening to the site and some
are subject to a Tree Preservation Order. In the absence of evidence to the contrary, the
development is likely to have an adverse effect on these important trees contrary to policies DG1
and N6 of the Local Plan.

In the absence of relevant survey details and their analysis and evaluation, the proposal fails to
demonstrate that it would not have a detrimental impact on protected species or their habitats.
In addition, no biodiversity enhancements have been proposed by the application. Accordingly,
the proposal is contrary to paragraphs 109 and 118 of the NPPF.

Application 15/02565/FULL

1

The application site lies within the functional flood plain (Flood Zone 3b), and the type of
development proposed is not permitted in this flood zone. In addition, the submitted Flood Risk
Assessment does not demonstrate that the proposed development would not impede the flow of
flood water, reduce the capacity of the flood plain to store flood water or increase the number of
people or properties at risk from flooding. The proposal is therefore contrary to saved policy F1
of the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan 1999 (incorporating alterations
adopted June 2003) and to advice contained in National Planning Policy Guidance on flooding
and paragraphs 100 to 103 of the National Planning Policy Framework, March 2012.

The Local Planning Authority is not convinced that the development, as proposed, can be
implemented without having a detrimental impact on the health and visual amenity of the
principal trees within and surrounding the site in both the short and longer term. The principal
trees contribute positively to the appearance of the area, provide screening to the site and some
are subject to a Tree Preservation Order. In the absence of evidence to the contrary, the
development is likely to have an adverse effect on these important trees contrary to policies DG1
and N6 of the Local Plan.

In the absence of relevant survey details and their analysis and evaluation, the proposal fails to
demonstrate that it would not have a detrimental impact on protected species or their habitats.
In addition, no biodiversity enhancements have been proposed by the application. Accordingly,
the proposal is contrary to paragraphs 109 and 118 of the NPPF.

22



Application 15/02567/FULL

1

The application site lies within the functional flood plain (Flood Zone 3b), and the type of
development proposed is not permitted in this flood zone. In addition, the submitted Flood Risk
Assessment does not demonstrate that the proposed development would not impede the flow of
flood water, reduce the capacity of the flood plain to store flood water or increase the number of
people or properties at risk from flooding. The proposal is therefore contrary to saved policy F1
of the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan 1999 (incorporating alterations
adopted June 2003) and to advice contained in National Planning Policy Guidance on flooding
and paragraphs 100 to 103 of the National Planning Policy Framework, March 2012.

The Local Planning Authority is not convinced that the development, as proposed, can be
implemented without having a detrimental impact on the health and visual amenity of the
principal trees within and surrounding the site in both the short and longer term. The principal
trees contribute positively to the appearance of the area, provide screening to the site and some
are subject to a Tree Preservation Order. In the absence of evidence to the contrary, the
development is likely to have an adverse effect on these important trees contrary to policies DG1
and N6 of the Local Plan.

In the absence of relevant survey details and their analysis and evaluation, the proposal fails to
demonstrate that it would not have a detrimental impact on protected species or their habitats.
In addition, no biodiversity enhancements have been proposed by the application. Accordingly,
the proposal is contrary to paragraphs 109 and 118 of the NPPF.

Application 15/02749/FULL

1

The application site lies within the functional flood plain (Flood Zone 3b), and the type of
development proposed is not permitted in this flood zone. In addition, the submitted Flood Risk
Assessment does not demonstrate that the proposed development would not impede the flow of
flood water, reduce the capacity of the flood plain to store flood water or increase the number of
people or properties at risk from flooding. The proposal is therefore contrary to saved policy F1
of the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Local Plan 1999 (incorporating alterations
adopted June 2003) and to advice contained in National Planning Policy Guidance on flooding
and paragraphs 100 to 103 of the National Planning Policy Framework, March 2012.

The Local Planning Authority is not convinced that the development, as proposed, can be
implemented without having a detrimental impact on the health and visual amenity of the
principal trees within and surrounding the site in both the short and longer term. The principal
trees contribute positively to the appearance of the area, provide screening to the site and some
are subject to a Tree Preservation Order. In the absence of evidence to the contrary, the
development is likely to have an adverse effect on these important trees contrary to policies DG1
and N6 of the Local Plan.

In the absence of relevant survey details and their analysis and evaluation, the proposal fails to
demonstrate that it would not have a detrimental impact on protected species or their habitats.
In addition, no biodiversity enhancements have been proposed by the application. Accordingly,
the proposal is contrary to paragraphs 109 and 118 of the NPPF.

23



This page is intentionally left blank



=S

i

-

i
J0;

-t
-—

5

B

b

r? i l':’ ﬂ'

U
- =
o) &
LE

Wi

EJ_I‘.T_i oo

{dist

T
-

APPENDIX A

KCC 3

Ehriisenas Barery O Creen Copyan 2015, Allcighen rp

v

F @ [ooees b HSOEIT Mieosd So - ok

PLAN

TITLE Proposed Site Block Plan

SITE Land North of Strande Lane, Cookham
CLIENT | Mr Samuel Driver

NUMBER | KCC1843/03bb 09/15Im

DATE Sept 2015 | SCALE [ 1:2500 at A4 |

KERNON COUNTRYSIDE CONSULTANTSLTD
Greenacres Barn, Purfon Stoke, Swindon SMS 4LL
Tel 793 771333 Email info@kerman.couk
This plan is reproduced from the Ordnance Survey under
copyright license 100015226

25



i

Front Bermion Fline g

Yorandah End Elivsaticn
1 1 - -
| P S S—1
11188

Rmned Mt

APPENDIX B

A e

TIFLE | Prapesil Lag Comr Binsgion

TR | Bl Mirth o Slras Larw, Coskbam

LTS | o Jarmbl friis_ 1

AUNEIER | 10T WMATe Ci ek

ATE -_._11-'.13‘!; BT AR
RFCA COUNTRTECN COMBLA, TAATES T
e B i . abialion TR0 AL

[T EE Ty ———

MOrWEgIan Loy

BUILEIMGS

Fronl Elewalkas

=ndl Ekraaiion

\/
AN

26

Fs! Man 12300

har

Wi B Debase
otichr
5w #0ON

et

Arended Menclz 2

3° Lixg with Baid wals 1o BE3E32
i

Ploor Plan & 1
= pmcman D | by 3018
T npight. o i by rewadew fe

.uﬁuwumhl*mﬁu;
i pa Lo, o e el kot



APPENDIX C

)
|

/Enmigicle

| —
fij

fclizl
vy ey £ Cvwses Ceppmgs 1015, AR righty, e

'\ @ Lincene et HUTIMIT Mased Sexle - 1:2400
I PLAN KCC 3

TITLE Proposed Site Block Plan

SITE Land North of Strande Lane, Cookham
CLIENT | Mr Samuel Driver

NUMBER | KCC1943/03cc D91 Slm

DATE Sept 2015 | SCALE [ 1:2500 at Ad

KERNON COUNTRYSIDE COMSLLTANTS LTD
Gregnacras Barn, Purion Sioke, Swindan SME 4LL
Tel 01783 771333 Emall Infodkemon.co.uk
This plan is reproduced from the Ordnance Survey under
copyright licanse 100015225

27



APPENDIX D

P ‘S 06050 10 UL BUE INDLEM PESNDO.

- IEUBiEW

wan TIEL]|

SL-d~LZ, =Eq|
SIN ‘BEIS HOSZOS B .
i Bi0raDs swwi
T [EWEN O MA “OVON T EISH] 3d
——| ©ownebed ‘WY A NOLNIM|

== JALINIMN STANNNLATOd
= MOOAMINTT |

28

B0NC

GOV




APPENDIX E

- ' pit
IE "- ' {dis)

Diedsancs Barery © Cresn Copyrigha JO8E, A righes. rvsevwedl.
i mnbar 1930F2910 Froosd Scaln - 1cki08

" . PLAN | KGC3

Pmap TITLE | Proposed Site Block Pian

SITE Land North of Strande Lane, Cookham
[ CLIENT | Mr Samusl Driver

NUMBER | KCC1943/03dd 09/15im

DATE Sept 2015 | SCALE [ 1:2500 at Ad

KERMNON COUNTRYSIDE CONSULTANTS LTD
Greenacres Barn, Purion Sloke, Swindon SNS 4LL
Teld 01783 771333 Email info@kermon.co.uk

29



APPENDIX F

30




APPENDIX G

{disl

Dbt Barery 0 Crws Capywgl 3006, Al Aighia rs

' [ Linrmoe memt MOOTIIA12 Phomad Taubs - B0 ' .
Promap PLAN —KCC3
TITLE Proposed Site Block Plan

SITE Land North of Strande Lane, Cookham
CLIENT | Mr Samuel Driver

MWUMBER | KCC1843/03aa 08/15Im

| DATE Sept2015 | SCALE [ 1: 2500 at Ad

KERNOM COUNTRYSIDE CONSULTANTS LTD
Greanaches Bam, Purton Stoke, Swindion SME 4LL
Tel (1783 771333 Email infoi@kernon.co.uk
Thas phan g reproduced fram the Ordnance Surey undar
copyright license 100015226

31



APPENDIX H

0oLk SNOILYAZTI LSIM ® LSV3
22510001 susay 1ubiidon
.a_:%swiiggsﬁcvﬂgnglnmz.— e |
EEELLLEELL . -
TIr SN UOpUN O¥Ig UUng g $R0E0K w§ Wy we Wi oowp o wp _

OL7 SINVLINSNOD JOISAHLNNDD NONESH

T,

* : f |
,::_ ;F -

N¥d 50014 \ﬁ

L ::
A " 4

NOILYAZTI HLNOS

.E

NOILVATT3 HLHON

Wz . |
wZgl - = >

I

wz'gh

=

we'g

e ) s ) e s e — e TS

P

1

1

T

wi'g

32



ROYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHEAD
PLANNING COMMITTEE

MAIDENHEAD DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

17 February 2016 Item: 2

Application 15/03707/FULL

No.:

Location: Gordons Supermarket 17 - 19 Gordon Road Maidenhead SL6 6BS

Proposal: Alterations to ground floor retail unit and the conversion of upper floors to provide 2 x
residential units with associated parking.

Applicant: Mr Akhtar

Agent: Dezine 4U Ltd

Parish/Ward: Belmont Ward

If you have a question about this report, please contact: Diane Charlton on 01628 685699 or at
diane.charlton@rbwm.gov.uk

1. SUMMARY
1.1 This is predominantly a residential area and the proposed change of use would be an acceptable
use in this area.
1.2 Subject to the provision of one parking space for each unit being provide, there are no highway
objections.
It is recommended the Panel grants planning permission subject to the conditions
listed in Section 10 of this report.
2. REASON FOR PANEL DETERMINATION
e The Borough Planning Manager and Lead Member for Planning considers it appropriate that
the Panel determines the application.
3. DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND ITS SURROUNDINGS
3.1 This site is located in a predominantly residential area. It is located on the north side of Gordon
Road and comprises a ground floor retail unit with associated storage at first floor level. The
property is semi-detached with No 15 Gordon Road, a residential property.
3.2 Whilst a number of the residential houses do benefit from at least 1 off street parking space, a
few especially to the east of the application site and a number of properties along Wellington
Road rely on parking on the public highway.
4, DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSAL AND ANY RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
Ref. Description Decision and Date
07/02539 First floor extension and 2 new windows to 19 Approved 16.11.2007
08/01754 Raising of roof to 15, amendments to 07/02539 Approved 19.09.2008
4.1 The proposal is for a change of use of the first floor above the retail unit to 2 self contained

residential units comprising of a 1 bedroomed unit and 1 bedsit. It is also proposed to make an
alteration to the front of the shop by moving it back by 1.2 metre, to provide 2 formal parking
spaces and to provide an entrance staircase to the upstairs. A refuse storage area in front of
the new entrance will be provided.

33




5.1

5.2

MAIN RELEVANT STRATEGIES AND POLICIES RELEVANT TO THE DECISION

National Planning Policy Framework, Section 6 — High Quality homes and Section 7 — Good
design and Paragraph 17 — core principles.

Royal Borough Local Plan

The main strategic planning considerations applying to the site and the associated policies are:

Within Highways
settlement | /Parking
area issues

Local Plan DG1, H10,

H11 15, P4

5.3 Supplementary planning documents adopted by the Council relevant to the proposal are:

54

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

e Sustainable Design and Construction
e Planning for an Ageing Population

More information on these documents can be found at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/pp supplementary planning.htm

Other Local Strategies or Publications
Other Strategies or publications relevant to the proposal are:

° RBWM Parking Strategy - view at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web pp supplementary planning.htm

° RBWM Shopfronts and Advertisements - view at:
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web pp supplementary planning.htm

EXPLANATION OF RECOMMENDATION
The key issues for consideration are:
i Principle of the change of use and;
i Impact on car parking and highway safety;

Principle of the change of use
As this is predominantly a residential area the proposed change of use would be an acceptable
use. There is no objection to the loss of storage for the shop unit as although it will result in the
reduction in the shop floorspace this will not effect the overall retail function.
Schedule 2 Part 3 Class G of the Town and Country (General Permitted Development)(
England) Order 2015, allows for a change of use of part of a shop to up to 2 flats. This would
mean that planning permission would not be required for the change of use in itself, however
the proposal relies on providing a new access staircase to the front and this would require
permission.
Whilst the storage area is conditioned to be for storage in association with retail use, this was to
prevent retail sales from that part of the site, the planning unit as a whole is still a retail A 1 use

and benefits from the above provision.

Furthermore the NPPF encourages sustainable development and the re use of buildings for
residential uses.

34


http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web/pp_supplementary_planning.htm
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp_supplementary_planning.htm
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/web_pp_supplementary_planning.htm

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

71

Parking and Highway safety

From the objections received from local residents the main concern is with regards to parking.
Presently, the hard standing area fronting number 15 Gordon Road is being used as a loading
area and benefits from a single parking space. The applicant proposes retaining this area for
deliveries. However, the Highway Authority questions how a delivery vehicle could access the
loading area if the proposed 2 car parking spaces are occupied and, more importantly the
proximity of the bin store.

With regard to the retention of the loading area the applicant reports in the Design & Access
Statement that;

The timing and frequency of deliveries could furthermore be controlled by a suitably worded
planning condition to ensure they occur outside of peak traffic movements.

This is an unworkable solution for the reasons given above. The presumption is there will be
some loading and unloading from the public highway. In highway terms this is unlikely to
cause harm to road users owing to the current size of the delivery vehicles and the reduction
in the retail floor area.

The plan as amended now complies with adopted standards. The amended parking layout plan
has increases the size of one of the parking bays to 4.7 by 5m and 4.8m by 5m , increases the
path size to the shop to 1.23m and further sets back the shop front to 1.2m.

There is a high demand for on street parking in Gordon Road and many of the roads in the
surrounding area. It is the Highway Officers view that the proposal will not add to this demand
since it satisfies the Authority’s current parking standard. Whilst it is acknowledge that this would
leave the retail unit without its own off street parking, manoeuvring in and out of the hard standing
area outside number 15 would be difficult, if not awkward and, would lead to delivery vehicles
loading from the highway. This is unlikely to cause harm to road users in the area sufficient to
warrant refusal.

Other Material Considerations
Sustainable Design and Construction

The Council has an adopted ‘Sustainable Design and Construction’ Supplementary Planning
Document was formally adopted in June 2009. It is a material consideration in the assessment
and the purpose of this SPD is to help improve the sustainability performance of buildings and
spaces through their construction and subsequent use. It covers a range of areas including
energy efficiency, renewable energy, water and waste management, materials, biodiversity and
pollution and indicates the requirements expected of development and provides guidance on
how this could be achieved. The SPD makes clear that applications submitted without any
evidence of how issues of sustainability have been considered and appropriate actions taken
risk being refused.

For new dwelling units, the SPD refers to a range of measures such as reduction of energy
demand (through efficient insulation and the use of A-rated domestic appliances, for example);
possible use of renewable source provision to meet usual energy demand; rainwater harvesting
and/or surface water run-off control through the use of permeable hard surfacing; and improved
management of waste through recycling and composting, and cycle storage. (condition 4)

ASSOCIATED INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS

The CIL Regulations came into affect from 6th April 2015 and imposes a restriction on the
pooling of Section 106 contributions by LPAs for use towards an infrastructure type or project. It
is also important to note that a planning obligation s106 can only be taken into account when
determining a planning application for a development, or any part of a development, if the
obligation meets all of the following tests:

1) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;

2) directly related to the development; and

35



3) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

7.2 Furthermore, national planning policy advice contained within the NPPG makes it very clear that
site specific contributions should only be sought where this can be justified with reference to
underpinning evidence on infrastructure planning. In this case, given the limited impact a
development of this scale and that there are no projects that would meet the above tests,
financial contributions are not required.

8. CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT
Comments from interested parties

14 occupiers were notified directly of the application.

4 letters were received objecting to the application, summarised as:

will create problems with the constant flow of customers and deliveries.

Where in the
Comment report this is
considered
1. | Main concern is parking and safety — increased density of parking is 6.6-6.9
contrary to Policy H11 of the Local Plan and will lead to further parking
problems in the street.
The provision of 2 parking spaces with bollards for the proposed flats 6.6-6.9

The vehicles parked in the spaces will get blocked in by customers
which will lead to additional conflict.

This will be an
issue for

applicant and
future occupiers

to address.
4. | There are problems with pedestrian safety at present and this will get 6.6-6.9
worse with proposal.
5. | The applicant may not rent or sell the flats but use them for his own Noted.
family.
Consultees
Where in the
Consultee Comment report this is
considered
Highways No objection subject to conditions.(2 and 3) 6.6-6.9
EPO No objection subject to conditions. The conditions

do not meet the
tests as set out
in the NPPF and
are covered by
environmental
protection
legislation.

9. APPENDICES TO THIS REPORT

e Appendix A - Site location plan

e Appendix B — indicative layout drawings

36



10.

This recommendation is made following careful consideration of all the issues raised through the
application process and thorough discussion with the applicants. The Case Officer has sought
solutions to these issues where possible to secure a development that improves the economic,
social and environmental conditions of the area, in accordance with NPFF.

In this case the issues have not been successfully resolved.
CONDITIONS RECOMMENDED FOR INCLUSION IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED

The development hereby permitted shall be commenced within three years from the date of this
permission.

Reason: To accord with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(as amended).

No part of the development shall be occupied until vehicle parking space has been provided in
accordance with the approved drawing. The space approved shall be retained for parking in
association with the development.

Reason: To ensure that the development is provided with adequate parking facilities in order to
reduce the likelihood of roadside parking which could be detrimental to the free flow of traffic and
to highway safety. Relevant Policies - Local Plan P4, DG1.

No part of the development shall be occupied until the access has been constructed in
accordance with details that have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The access shall thereafter be retained.Reason: In the interests of highway
safety and the free flow of traffic. Relevant Policies - Local Plan T5, DG1.

No development shall take place until details of sustainability measures have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These details shall demonstrate how the
development would be efficient in the use of energy, water and materials in accordance with the
Royal Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead Sustainable Design & Construction Supplementary
Planning Document. The development shall be carried out and subsequently retained and
maintained in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To ensure that measures to make the development sustainable and efficient in the use
of energy, water and materials are included in the development and to comply with the Royal
Borough of Windsor & Maidenhead Sustainable Design & Construction Supplementary Planning
Document.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans
listed below.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved
particulars and plans.

37



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

£1881000T ASAINS 20UBUPIQ *STOZ 46U 3seqeiep pue 1yBLAdod umosd @

39



APPENDIX B

|

Butcherns Area

Store 1

Retal

Favs )
1 St Back Existing Shop Front
|

‘ Bea 1|

l_.

Batn (Tl
I\j

‘ Dini

Parking 1
2.4% 50

Parking 2
27x50

:

&

LN Enfrancs

Hew Regdentia

an

Proposed First Floor Plan

..

i refuse 1401
recycle 1.40Hr

Parking 2x2.4

45

Proposed Ground Floor Plan

AN CRAWINGS 160 READ I CORANGTEIN WITH COMSTIAETGH SPECFCATIN,

40




g L

Proposed Front Elevation Proposed Rear Elevation

Proposed East Elevation

Frobosed
Elevations

Job No: 1501-AGU

Proposed West Elevation

41



This page is intentionally left blank



A%enda ltem 5

ROYAL BOROUGH OF WINDSOR & MAIDENHE

MAIDENHEAD

MAIDENHEAD DEVELOPMENT CONTROL PANEL

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Planning Appeals Received

9 January 2016 - 5 February 2016 Winsor &

The appeals listed below have been received by the Council and will be considered by the Planning Inspectorate.
Further information on planning appeals can be found at www.planningportal.gov.uk/pcs Should you wish to make
comments in connection with an appeal, please use the Plns reference number and write to the relevant address,

shown below.

Enforcement appeals: The Planning Inspectorate, Room 3/23 Hawk Wing, Temple Quay House, 2 The Square,

Temple Quay, Bristol, BS1 6PN or email teame1@pins.gsi.gov.uk

Other appeals: The Planning Inspectorate Room 3/10A Kite Wing Temple Quay House 2 The Square Bristol BS1

Parish/Ward:
Appeal Ref.:

Date Received:
Type:
Description:
Location:
Appellant:

Parish/Ward:
Appeal Ref.:

Date Received:
Type:
Description:
Location:
Appellant:

Parish/Ward:
Appeal Ref.:

Date Received:

Type:
Description:

Location:
Appellant:

Parish/Ward:
Appeal Ref.:

Date Received:
Type:
Description:
Location:
Appellant:

Parish/Ward:

6PN or email teamp13@pins.gsi.gov.uk

APP/T0355/D/16/
3143234

2 February 2016 Comments Due: Not Applicable

Refusal Appeal Type: Householder

Construction of a two storey rear extension and single storey side extension and front porch
Etchea Fishery Road Maidenhead SL6 1UP

Mr Alan Suleyman c/o Agent: Mr Alistair Lloyd Abracad Architects The Atrium Broad Lane
Bracknell Berkshire RG12 9BX

16/00007/REF Planning Ref.:  15/03926/FULL PIns Ref.:

APP/T0355/W/16/
3142379

8 March 2016

Written Representation

16/00008/REF Planning Ref.:  15/01248/FULL Pins Ref.:
2 February 2016 Comments Due:
Refusal Appeal Type:
Construction of detached two storey dwelling

Land To The Rear of 5 To 8 Sunnymede Cottages Ray Mill Road East Maidenhead

Mr Martin Ebbetts c/o Agent: Mr Allen Watson Buttery And Watson Berry House 78 Altwood

Road Maidenhead SL6 4PZ

APP/T0355/D/16/
3143401

3 February 2016 Comments Due: Not Applicable

Refusal Appeal Type: Householder

First floor rear extension, single storey front porch, 1 new window on first floor side elevation
and 1 No. rear roof light.

121 Clare Road Maidenhead SL6 4DN

Mr Mohammed Sulaman c/o Agent: Mr R Johnson 59 Lancaster Road Maidenhead SL6
5EY

16/00009/REF Planning Ref.:  15/03745/FULL PIns Ref.:

APP/T0355/D/16/
3143405

3 February 2016 Comments Due: Not Applicable

Refusal Appeal Type: Householder

Single storey front extension and first floor side and rear extension and 1 No. rear roof light.
123 Clare Road Maidenhead SL6 4DN

Mr Shams Sulaman c/o Agent: Mr R Johnson 59 Lancaster Road Maidenhead SL6 5EY

16/00010/REF Planning Ref.:  15/03741/FULL PIns Ref.:

43

The Royal Boraugh

Maidenhead



http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/pcs
mailto:teame1@pins.gsi.gov.uk
mailto:teamp13@pins.gsi.gov.uk

Appeal Ref.:

Date Received:

Type:
Description:
Location:
Appellant:

16/00011/REF Planning Ref.:  15/03550/PDXL  PlIns Ref.: APP/T0355/X/1

5/3143755
3 February 2016 Comments Due: 16 March 2016
Refusal Appeal Type: Written Representation

Single storey rear extension no greater than 6m depth, 4m high and eaves height of 2.5m
62 Portlock Road Maidenhead SL6 6DZ
Mr And Mrs O Gooch c/lo Agent: Mr P Mackrory 17 Bissley Drive Maidenhead SL6 3UX

44



The Royal Borough

Appeal Decision Report

9 January 2016 - 5 February 2016

Windsor &

MAIDENHEAD
Maidenhead
Appeal Ref.: 15/00087/REF Planning Ref.: 15/01667/FULL Pins Ref.: APP/T0355/W/15/
3133609
Appellant: Mrs Jackie Roberts c/o Agent: Mr Peter Smith PJSA Chartered Surveyors Ltd The Old

Decision Type:
Description:

Location:

Appeal Decision:

Main Issue:

Place Lock Path Dorney Windsor SL4 6QQ

Delegated Officer Recommendation: Refuse

Conversion of the existing annexe to an independent semi-detached dwelling. Single storey
rear extension and extension to entrance porch and pitched roof over existing flat roof.

Four Gables 62 Lower Cookham Road Maidenhead SL6 8JZ

Dismissed Decision Date: 3 February 2016
Failed Exception Test. The provision of one additional house does not amount to the level of
wider sustainability benefit that would outweigh the flood risk. In addition, the FRA does not
demonstrate that the development would provide safe access and egress for people during a
flood. References to other planning permissions for housing development have only limited
parallels with this appeal proposal.

45



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	LOCAL GOVERNMENT.docx access to info.pdf
	Declaring Interests at Meetings (Oct 2015).pdf

	3 MINUTES
	4 PLANNING APPLICATIONS (DECISION)
	meetings_160217_mdcp_02564_item_1.docx
	meetings_160217_mdcp_appendices_item_1
	meetings_160217_mdcp_03707_item_2.docx
	meetings_160217_mdcp_appendices_item_2

	5 ESSENTIAL MONITORING REPORTS (MONITORING)

